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The recurrence of oppressive tyranny, and disgusting cruelties on the part
of Captains of Merchant Ships, particularly of the smaller class, has unfortu-
nately, of late, become so frequent, that Her Majesty’s Government felt it
imperatively their duty to undertake the prosecution of Captain Rogers and
his two Mates, Miles and Seymour. With this view, they entrusted the
management of the trial to I'. J. Hamel, Esq., the able and energetic Solicitor

to the Board of Customs, who was specially deputed to act as Solicitor to the
Treasury in this case. He arranged the evidence with his usual skill and

ability, and adduced a case which left not even the shadow of a doubt as to
the guilt of all the prisoners on the minds of the learned Judge, the Jury, and
the.intently listening auditors. in a court crowded almost to suffocation.

It has further been determined to publish the trial in a condensed, but
most 1mpartial form ; and 1t 1s to be hoped that the awful death of Rogers,
and the lifelong, hopeless, unalterable servitude to which Miles and Seymour
will probably be consigned, by a commutation of their original sentence, will
show to unworthy Masters of Merchant Vessels, that although every protec-
tion will be afforded to them in the legitimate maintenance of order and
subordination on board, a sure and certain retribution will overtake them, 1f
they wantonly abuse the powers with which they are armed for such purposes ;
and also prove to our hardy Mariners, that the law watches over them, how-

ever distant they may be from their native shores.
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The Attorney-General opened the case as follows :—Gentlemen of
the jury, the three prisoners at the bar stand indicted for feloniously
and of their malice aforethought killing one Andrew Rose. This
offence was committed on the high seas, between the 11th May and
the 5th June. The prisoner Henry Rogers was the Master of the
ship, the Martha and Jane ; the prisoner William Miles was the chief
mate ; and Charles Edward Seymour, the second mate. Andrew
Rose, the deceased, was an able seaman on board, and the means of
death a series of violences and outrages committed by the three
prisoners upon the deceased, by beating and ill-treating him. The
Martha and Jane is a British ship, owned at Sunderland, and it sailed
from Hartlepool last year to Calcutta, where there was a change of
Masters. From Calcutta it came to Demerara, and from Demerara
to Barbadoes, where Henry Rogers became the Master, and Andrew
Rose entered on board the ship. Ie entered on the 29th of Aypril,
as an able seaman, and signed articles wh_igh stipulated, among other
things, for a certain allowance of provisions. When he came on
board he was put to some duty by the second mate, Seymour, who
found fault with him and beat him, so severely that Rose was advised
by some of the crew to leave the ship, and he ran away. About the
9th or 10th of May he was brought back by the police, and was put

in irons. The vessel sailed on the 1lth May. The day after the

vessel sailed he was again beaten by Seymour ; the chief mate also,
and the Captain also beat him on the same day,
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From that day until the last outrage, about two or three days bo
fore his death, he was beaten by the prisoners almost every day with
a rope and a whip, when in irons and out of irons. It is difficult to
get the precise dates ; but they all occurred after the sailing of the
ship, and before the death of the deceased. When he came on
board he was apparently an able secaman and in good health; his
hair was close cropped, and there is reason from that and his conduct
to surmise that his intellect had been deranged. He was fond of
singing, and he sang “ Oh, be joyful.” One Sunday morning the
Captain bade him be silent, and said, “ I’ll make you sorrowful,” and
he forced an iron bolt of considerable size into his mouth, and the
other two prisoners tied it with a rope behind his head, and he was
kept with that gag in his mouth for about an hour and a half. The
Captain had a dog on board, and he taught that dog to- bite the de-
ceased. e first set him on with a command to  bite that man :”
and afterwards, whenever the Captain came forward with his whip,
the dog would fly at him and bite him. * Upon some occasions the
blood spurted out. The dog bit out a piece of the flesh, and as the de-
ceased put out his hands to protect himself, the dog bit them too.
Upon another occasion the deceased was sent aloft to furl the sail.
He was naked, and was sent up with a bucket of water probably for
a causc to which I shall allude presently. The chief mate followed

him up, and whipped him so severely that the blood ran in several
places. Upon another occasion, when the deceased was in irons, he
asked to be allowed to go to the bows to do a necessary act. And
I must hcre mention that ‘the deceased laboured under such an in-
firmity which prevented him from containing his excrement, which
came from him involuntarily. When in irons he asked leave to g0
forward for that purpose. He was refused, upon which he relieved
himself on deck. The mate and the Captain then beat him, and
the latter ordered two men to hold the deceased upon his back, and
called for a spoon. Ie took a* fid”—a wooden pin—with which he
forced the excrement of the deceased into his mouth, and up his
nose, saymg, “ Isn’t it nice ?”” and “ You shall have more of it,”
until those who were called to assist shrunk away, unable to bear it
longer.

A day or two after, this was repeated several times. The Captain
ordered the carpenter to knock the head out of a water-cask ; but as
he was not quick enough, the Captain and mate did it themselves.
{t was the smallest of the water-casks on board the ship. They
brought Rose to the cask and put him in. They then rolled
the cask backwards and forwards several times over the deck, the
only means of getting air being through the bung-hole, which was on
the bilge. They lashed the cask to the side of the ship, and there
the deceased remained from twelve at noon till twelve at night.
While there he begged for water, and uttered great cries of distress.
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One of the mer gave him a little pea soup—poured it into his mouth,
at which the Captain was very angry, demanded who had done it,
and threatened to serve him the same. Another seaman gave him a
little water, when he complained of suffocation and excessive heat.
r_l_‘he last {-I.Ct, 'WhiCh terminated the cruelties, I might almost say, anrl

1 believe that word 1s not too strong, terminated the sufferings of
the deceased. Upon that occasion the deceased was told by the
Captain—** Rose, I wish you would either drown or hang yourself ;"
to which Rose answered, “ I wish you would do it for me.”” The
Captain and the two mates then took him to the mainmast. They
got a rope and made what was called a “ timber hitch.” They put it
over his neck and hoisted him up, his feet being from one to three
feet from the deck. He remained suspended by the neck for about
two minutes. His face became black, his eyes protruded from the
sockets, and froth came out of his mouth, and they then let him down.
The moment his feet touched the deck he fell flat, as if lifeless, and
the Captain was heard to say that, had they kept him there half a
minute longer, he would have been dead. This seems to have been
the iast outrage he had to endure,

After this his body and mind both gave way. The crew got him
down to the forecastle, but he was so crazy they were obliged to tie
his hands. He remained in the forecastle a day or two, but on the
morning of the 5th June—two or three days after the hanging—they
got him up on the deck to wash himself. He could scarcely crawl.
He lay down upon the deck, with his head towards the forward hatch,
and the water came in over his legs, but not over his head, and he
died. An hour or two after, they came to remove him and found
him dead. He had wounds all over his body from the biting of the
dog and the whipping. These wounds had festered. There were
maggots In some of them, and he was in such a state that the crew
were loth to touch him. They dragged him with a rope aft, and in
an hour after that, by order of the captain he was thrown overboard.
The ship made land next morning, and arrived in Liverpool on the

9th of June. Information was given and the captain and mates
arrested. The captain said he almost expected it, for that villain

Groves had said that he would do something of the kind. Groves
was one of the seamen on board, and will be called. The captain
afterwards imputed to Groves some violence to the deceased, and said
that he himself had done him no harm, but whipped him for being
dirty. "I'he prisoner Seymour, when arrested, said ““The less said about
it the better.” Miles, I believe, said nothing when arrested. N ow,
gentlemen, these are the facts of the case. These facts being brought
under the notice of her Majesty’s Government, they have instituted
this prosecution. I do not mention this fact to influence you, bhut
that you may know who the prosecutors are. 'We do not live in an
age when 1t will be either to the advantage or disadvantage of a pri-
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soner that a prosecution is conducted by such authority. But it is
necessary that this enquiry should be made in order that all British
seamen may know that however far they are from this country they
are never beyond the-reach of British laws to punish crime and to
protect innocence. No doubt, gentlemen, the principal questions
you will have to inquire into, will be whether these acts of violence
were really committed. We shall call some of the crew.

All who were examined before the magistrates are here, but it is
not necessary to call the whole. Weshall call some four or five, and
the rest are ready if the prisoners desire that they should be:examined.
You will judge how far you will credit what they say as to the con-
duct of the prisoners. A question no doubt will be raised whether
what they did was for the proper correction of the deceased. As to
that we shall put in the official log kept by the Captain, and which by
law is required to register all punishments inflicted on seamen. There
are several entries made of the conduct of the deceased ; but you will
find abundant evidence that those entries could not all have been
made at the times they bear date ; and you will find also this remark-
able fact that in the whole of the entries, not one alludes to the biting
of the dog, not one to the putting him in the cask, not one to the
hanging, not one even to the whipping, but the utmost that is stated
in the many charges in the log against the deceased, 1s that the Cap-
tain was obliged to stand over him with the whip to compel him to
wash himself. The log imputes his death to his being rotten inside.
I think it will appear that the Captain and the mates could not have
thought that these acts were proper acts of punishment to the deceased ;
i1t will be for you to say whether they were punishments, and if so
whether they were notexcessive,and such as indicated wilfulness,malice

and crime on their part. Another question no doubt will be whether

these acts were the cause of the death of the deceased ; of that you
will have to judge, and to say whether the deceased coming on board

a healthy man, and sinking under these acts of violence and outrage,
you have any reasonable doubt that they caused his death.

It 1s not necessary for you to believe that they aione:occasioned
his death, for if the deceased had any discase upon him, though that
disease might have been fatal, and though he might later have died
of that disease, yet, if you believe that in consequence of the acts
done by the prisoners, or any of them, that death was hastened,
then, gentlemen, they are responsible for the homicide; but in this
you will be assisted by some medical men who will be called, and
‘who I understand are of opinion that in any state of health or
disease death would be caused or accelerated by the acts of the
prisoners. Then, gentlemen, will arise a question of law. What
1s the degree of this homicide, if you believe that the death is
imputable to the prisoners? Is it murder or manslaughter? No
doubt, to make it murder, you must believe that it was done with
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malice aforethought. That does not mean any long pre-conceived
and cherished grudge against t];e déceased ; it means that the
prisoners did what they did, 1n}:endmg to do him some grievous injury,
though they might not haw:e mtendf_ed to cause his death, in which
case they would be responsible for his death to the extent of murder.
You will take the law upon that from the judge as you will take the
facts from the witnesses. 'This 1s the ease you will have to try.
We will call the witnesses, you will hear the facts from them, and
the law from the court, and then you will give your verdict accord-
ingly.

’ Thomas Hayes sworn and examined by Mr. E. James.

Q. Do you remember the Martha and Jane being at Barbadoes ?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you ship on board her there? A. Yes.

Q. As an able seaman? A. Yes.

Q. How long before the vessel sailed did you ship? A. I joined
10 or 11 days before she sailed. ,

Q. She sailed, I believe, on the 11th of May of this year? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the deceased, Andrew Rose, shipping on
board? A. Yes; he shipped the same day as 1 did.

Q. And, I believe, likewise as an able seaman? A. Yes.

Q. When he came on board in what state of health did he appear
to you to be? A. In a very good state of health. |

Q. Was his hair cropped quite close? A. Yes.

Q. Had you ever known him before? A. No, I had never known

him before.

Q. Was Henry Rogers, the prisoner, the Captain of the vessel.
A. Yes.

Q. Was the second prisoner at the bar, William Miles, the chief
mate, and the other prisoner the second mate on board? A. No,

the second mate joined afterwards.

Q. But at the time you joined were they respectively the Captain
and the chief mate? A. Yes.

Q. Afterwards did the other prisoner, Charles Edward Seymour,
join as second mate ! A. Yes:

Q. At Barbadoes? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember when Rose first came on board any thing
happening to him? A. I was not on board the night he came on
board.

Q. But the night you came on board, what did you see? A. The

night I came on board I saw Seymour 1ll use him. |
Q. Was that some 9 or 10 days before the vessel sailed ? A. No,

it was not 9 or 10 days ; he came on board on the Friday night.
Q. Then on Friday before the vessel sailled? A. No, he came on
board on the Friday. I was not on board that night, I came on board

the day the vessel sailed.
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Q. That was on Monday the 11th, that the vessel sailed. Then on
Friday preceding the sailing, which was on the Monday, you being
on board, saw something happen to him? A. Yes.

Q. Describe what you saw happen to him?

Mr. Monk.—He said he was not there till the day the ship sailed.

Mzr. James.—Did you or did younotsayso? A. I saw the second
mate the first day I was on board.

Q. Will you state on the Friday what happened to him from the
second mate 7 A, I did not sce it on the Friday, 1 did not go on
board until Monday. .

Q. Then it was on the night of sailling? A. Yes.

Q. What happened then ¢ A. I saw the second mate ill-use him.
The man was helping to heave-up the anchor when I came. 'They
were serving out some liquor, and the steward sald he was not to
give any to him by the Captain’s order. We went to the Captain
and spoke to him about it. After the anchor was hove-up, we made
sall and I saw the second mate ill-use him.

Q. In what way, what did he do? A. He took a rope’s-end, and
rope’s-ended him.

Q. The next day did you see any thing? A. 1 saw the two mates
ill-use him the next day. |
' Q. Do you mean both at the same time, or one after the other?

A. Both at the same time very often, but not at all times.

Q. The next day you are speaking of? A. They did not hit him
the next day, not at the same time.

Q. What was done by one or the other the day after the ship
salling? A. They rope’s-ended him in the same way.

Q. What sort of a rope was it? A. A small rope, like that one
(pointing to a rope on the table.)

Q. Such a rope as this (handing it)? A. Yes, but longer.

Q. Longer than this, but this thickness? A. Yes.

Q. Did they lay it on lightly or heavily! A. As hard as they
could lay it on—they never showed any mercy at all.

Q. Could you discover what was the cause of their beating him?
A. No, we did not know at all what it was.

Q. Did the deceased appear to you at all of sound intellect or
weak 7 A, Sometimes he would talk sensibly, but not always.

Q. Did you about that time or the day after see the Captain do
any thing ? A. Yes, I heard the Captain order the steward to fetch
the riding whip to him.

Q. That was on the third day you heard the Captain give that
order? A. Yes, I heard him give the order to bring up the whip.

Q. I do not know whether you can speak to the whip, but was it
such a whip as this (producing one)? A. Yes, that is the same whip.

Q. Did the steward bring the whip? A. Yes.

Q. When the whip was ordered, did you observe that Rose had
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refused to do any thing, or coild you discover what was the eause ?
A. No, I did not know what it was. T was walking aft at the time
the Captain was lashing him with the whip.

Q. You did not discover the cause? A. No.

Q. When the steward brought the whip, what did the Captain do
with it? A. Why, he laid it on his back as hard as he could let him
have it, and across his legs.

Q. You have now got to the third day. Before then did you see
him in irons at all? A. No; I cannot say I saw him in irons before
the third day.

Q. Was he in irons when beaten or out of irons? A. Out of irons.

Q. Did the man do his work up to that time the same as other
men? A. Yes, he did what was ordered.

Q. Did you ever see him flogged afterwards by the three pri-
soners or any of them? A. Yes, every day. There was not a day
passed without 1t until the day the man died. I saw him flogged
every day by the three prisoners.

Mr. BaroN WatsoNn—Never a day passed without it? A. No.

Mr. E. James—With what did the Captain flog him? A. With
that whip (pointing).

Q. And the other prisoners, what did they use? A. They used
to have that whip when the Captain was in his cabin ; they used to
usc the whip in the same way in their different watches.

Q. Did you ever see them use anything else? A. Yes, I have
seen them rope’s-end him. When the whip was not handy, they
would take a rope’s-end or the first thing they could lay hold of.

Q. Was there a dog on board? A. Yes.

Q. Have you ever seen any one urging on the dog at all? A.
What ? setting the dog at him ! ‘

Q. Yes. A. I have seen the captain. '

Q. What did he say or do at that time? A. What, the man ?

Q. No, the Captain. What did he say when you saw him set the
dog at him? A. He would tell the dog to go and bite him, and the
dog would know what the Captain said as well as anything. .

Q. On the Captain saying so, what would the dog do? A. The
dog would go and bite the man directly.

Mr. Moxk—Don’t tell us what he would do, but what he did do. °

Mr. E. James— What did the man do? A. He put out his hands
to save his legs. The dog used to bite him in his arms and legs.

Q. Did you see any blood flow? A. Yes, out of his arms and
legs where he bit him.

- Q. Did you ever see Rose in irons? A, Yes.

Q. Often or seldom. A. Often.

Q. Do you know from what you heard from the Captain or mates
why he was put in 1wous? A. No, 1 don’t know at all; I never
heard anything about 1t. -
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Q. Did you observe previous to that Rose being put in irons for
neglect of duty at all? A. No, he always did as they told him.

Q. Did you ever see him flogged while in irons? A. Yes.

Q. By whom? A. By three of the men, by the Captain’s orders

for stealing sugar.

Q. You heard the Captain give orders and you saw them flog
him. A. Yes.

Q. That was for stealing sugar? A. Yes, for stealing sugar out
of the galley.

Q. Did he upon one or two or three occasions, I do not know how
many, dirty the deck? A. Yes. -

Mr. MoNnk—On one or two or three occasions: that is not a
proper way of putting a question. This is too serious a case for that.

Mr. E. JAMEsS—I do not want to lead him at at all, but 1 do not
see how 1 can avoid putting that question.

Q. Was it upon more than one occasion? A. Yes, upon three
occaslons.

Q. Was he at liberty on all three occasions to which you speak?
A. No, he was 1n 1rons. |

Q. About how many times during the day have you seen him
flogged? A. Well; I should say about ten or twelve times during
the day, never less. '

Q. By whom was he flogged ten or twelve times during the day?
A. By the three prisoners.

Q. Do you mean by the three altogether, or one or other of them?
A. No, by one or other of them.

Q. You have said you saw the Captain sct the dog at him ; have
you {;V@I‘ seen the dog afterwards, of his own accord, fly at Rose?
B X ED. ‘

Q. Upon what occasion was that? A. Assoon as the Captain had
taken the whip, the dog would fly and bite the man without any
orders from the Captain at all.

Q. Do you remember one day I am going to speak to when a
bolt was used; do you remember that particular day? A. The
gagging ?

Q. Yes. A. I did not see the gag put into his mouth. I was aft,
steering the ship.

Q. Upon that occasion, did you see the gag in his mouth? A.
Yes, when I came from the wheel.

Q. What sort of a thing was it? A. It was an iron bolt.

Q. The same as that? (handing an iron bolt). A. Yes.

Q. How was 1t put? A. It was put right across his mouth in this
way (describing 1t).

Q. And bound with spun-yarn round his head? A. Yes, round
to the neck.

Q. How long, to your knowledge, tid that remain in his mouth ?
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A. I was at the wheel at four o’clock, and it was there at half-past
four when I left. 1 saw the chief mate and second mate getting the
iron to gag him ; 1 was at the wheel when they went past.

Q. At four o’clock you saw the mates get a gag, and that remained
in his mouth until half-past four? A. Yes.

Q. While you were at the wheel, you saw the two mates came to
get something? A. Yes.

Q. And you saw them get the bolt? A. Yes, and the spun-yarn.

Q. When they were getting it, did you hear anything said ? A.
No, I did not know what it was for.

Q. But they got the bolt and spun-yarn? A. Yes.

Q. How long was that before you left the wheel? A. It was

about a quarter or half-an-hour.
Q. Before you left the wheel ? A. Yes.

Q. When you saw him with the gag in his mouth, how were his
hands? A. They were shackled behind him, and he was fast by the
feet at the same time. _ |

Q. Do you mean that his feet were fastened by a rope or a chain ?
A. I think that is a piece of the same chain—(pointing).

Q. It does not matter—but by a chain like that ?—(pointing to one
on the table.) Was he fastened to the deck or what? A. To a ring

bolt.
Q. In the deck? A. Yes—in the deck.

Q. Do you remember another day I am going to speak to—about
a water-cask? A. Yes.

Q. What did you hear or see in reference to that? A. I heard
the chief mate order the carpenter to unlash one of the water-casks,
and get the head out so as to put him 1n.

Q. At that time where was the carpenter? A. The carpenter was
in the gangway.

Q. Did the carpenter do that or not? A. No, he went to his
dinner.

Q. He went to his dinner ! A. Yes—the mate told him to get
the head out after dinner. =~

Q. Did they wait until the carpenter returned from his dinner ?
A. No, they took it out themselves. .

Q. Who? A. The two mates, and the Captain was standing by
at the same time.

Mgr. Baron Warsox.— Did the Captain assist, or was he looking
on? A. Yes, he looked on, and the two mates took the head out.

Mr. E. JaAmrs.—When they got the head out, what was done ? A.
Why, they helped Rose into it.

Q. Where was Rose at that time? A. He was standing whilst the
cask was being opened.

(). When he was put in, what was donc? A. They headed the

cask up again.
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Q. And fastened it? A. Yes.

Q. Fastened with hoops? A. Yes.

Q. About what time of the day was it? A. It was about a little
after twelve—eight bells had just struck. |

Q. When théy had - done that, was anything done to the cask. A.
Yes; it was rolled two or three times across the deek.

Q. What was done then? A. It was put into its place and lashed.

Q. It was lashed and put into its place? A, Yes. ‘

Q. How long did he continue in the cask? A. Till about twelve
o’clock that night. |

Q. That would be somewhere about twelve hours—from near noon
till twelve o’clock at night? A, Yes.

Q. Did you speak to Rose at all while he was in the cask? A. Yes.

Q. Through the bung-hole? A. Yes. |

Q. The bung-hole is large enough to put a can through? A.
They could put a dipper through. ' |

Q. What did you say to him ?

Mr. Mo~nk.—1 object to the question—I apprehend what was said
1s no evidence. | |

MR. BArRoN WaTsoN.—Of course what he said 1s no evidence.

Mgr. E. James.—Well, you spoke to him? A. Yes. |

MRr. Baro~n Warson.—It is no evidence, except that he cried to
get out—that would be evidence.

Mr. E. JAmEs.— Did he make any complaint while he was there?
A. I asked him how he felt.
M=r. Barox Warson.—That will not do.

Mgr. E. JAMEs.—Did he make any complaint.? A. No, he made
no complaint at all.

Q. Did you see him after he was let out? A. Yes.

Q. In what condition did he appear to be? A. He appeared.just
as if he had had buckets of water poured over him with sweat.

Q. Was there anything else you observed about his condition,

being faint, or hurt, or what? A. IHe was full of sores.
Q. At that time he was full of sores? A. Yes.
Q. Now, do you remember another time—I am now going to the
T i €S
Q. Do you remember one particular day—the first day ? A. Yes.
Q. Was he that time chained or not? A. Yes. |
Q. Having dirtied the deck, did the Captain come and do, or say

anything? A. Yes, he came and told him he would make him
eat 1t.

Q. When he said that, did he do anything, or call to him? A.
Yes, he took that fid there—(pointing to one on the table)—and put
1t into his mouth.

Q. He took that fid ?—(handing it to the witness). A. Yes—that
same fid. |
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Q. He took the dirt from the deck and put it into his mouth ? A.
Yes, and put’it into his mouth.
- Q. That you saw the Captain do himsclf? A. Yes, that he did
himself.
Q. Was any person holding him at the time? A. T did not sce
that time whether he was held. I was told he done it three times,
but I saw 1t only twice.

MRr. Moxnk.—Tell us what you saw, not what you heard.

Mgr. E. James.—Tell as what you saw. A. I saw it put into his
mouth twice.

Q. At the time you saw it, no one held him? A. No.

Q. Did you afterwards see anything clse done to him? A. Yes.

Q. On the first occasion you speak to, was any one present but the
Captain? A. Not st the time I saw it. I saw it put in his mouth
twice, and nobody held him. |

Q. Was anybody standing by—were the mates there? A. No;
we were all forward.

Q. Did you afterwards see something done again? A. Yes.

Q. By whom? A. By the Captain with a long stick. ~

Q. How long was that after the first occasion? A. That was th
same day, only one was in the morning, and the other in the after-

noon. :
Q. Were the mates there at that time or absent? A. They were

there 1n the afternoon.

Q. Did he do the same thing, put it into his mouth, except that he
used the long stick? A. Yes; and stopped his nostrils up.

Q. Have you ever seen Rose when he has been naked? A. Yes.

Q. Do you mean quite naked? A. Yes; quite naked.
- Q. I will ask you this,—how was he off for clothes when he came
on board? A. Well, he had not many clothes.

Q. Did you observe what he did with those clothes in any way—
with his trowsers? A. Well, sir, he dirtied them.

Q. Did vou see what became of them? If you did not, do not
tell me. A. I saw them pitched overboard several times.

Q. So that he was left without trowsers? A. Yes.
- Q. You saw his clothes pitched overboard several times? Yes.

Q. What were they ? A. Trowsers.

Q. Do you know whether the Captain gave him any trowsers or
not? A. No, the Captain gave him one pair of drawenrs.

Q. Do you know what became of them? A. He dirtied them,
and they were thrown overboard.

Q Are those the same of what you have been speaking of

before ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember Rose being sent up aloft when he was

naked? A. Yes.

Q. On one occasion, or more! A. I saw him going up aloft to
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furl a sail; when he came on deck it was not furled right, and he
was sent up again.

Q. By whom? A. By the chief mate. *

Q. When he sent him up, did he do anything to him? A. Well,
he rope’s-ended him up the rigging.

Q. Now, I am going to bring you to another day, when a rope was
used round his neck. A. Yes.

Q. Where were you the first time you saw anything of that sort
done?! A. I was painting the mainmast.

Q. What did you hear said by the three prisoners or any of them ?
What did you see done? A. The Captain was aft at the time, but

he came forward to the mainmast, where I was painting. He called
me by name, and said, ‘ Hayes, come here, and make a hangman’s
knot, and we will hang him.” 1 told him I could not make a hang-
man’s knot, I was not used to that.

Q. Did the Captain say anything? A. No; he looked at me,
that was all.

Q. Did you hear him say anything to anybody else? A. He told
me to give him a rope, and he would do it himself.

Q. Did you see anything done with the rope? A. Yes.

Q. What was done? A. I saw the Captain make a timber-hitch.

Q. What sort of a hitch is that? A. It is a hitch they put round
timber when they are going to heave 1t up.

Q. Is it a common hitch ? A. It is a running hitch.

(The witness left the box, and made the hitch.)

Q. Now, when he made that sort of hitch, what did you see done ?
A. He placed 1t round his neck.

Q. Round whose neck? A. Round Rose’s neck.

Q. Was anybody assisting him, or was he there by himself? A.
Yes ; there were the two mates.

Q. When they put it round Rose’s neck, what was next done?

A. He was pulled up.
Q. But, where? A. He was pulled up off the deck.

Q. Up to where? A. In the main-lifts—that is, part of it cuts off

there.
Q. Were his feet raised from the deck—was he'suspended ? A.

Yes.
Q. Is that part of the main lifts? A. Yes; that is part of the

main lifts ; it 1s cut off.

Q. While he was so suspended, did you observe what condition
he was in? A. Yes; I saw the froth coming out of his mouth.

Q. How long was he kept in that state? A. He was kept there
for about two minutes.

Q. They then let him down? A. Yes, they let him down.

Q. When he reached the deck what happened to him? A. He

fell right on his back, just like a dead man.
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Q. Did any of the three say anything when he so fell? A. No;
I did not hear them say anything.

Q. Did they give him assistance to get up? A. No, not at all.

Q. How long did he remain on the deck before he came round ?
A. Four or five minutes.

Q. Did he then get up himself, or was he lifted up 2« A. He got
up In the best way he could.

Q. He got up by himself? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the mate throwing water on him at all ? A, Yes.

Q. Was that the chief mate or second mate? A. The chief mate.

Q. Was that at a time when he was at liberty or ironed ! A. He
was 1n irons. -

Q. Dressed, or partially dressed? A. With a flannel shirt on;
that was generally his dress.

Q. 1 do not know whether you can tell the exact day, but how
long before he died was it that he was hanged in the way you have
described? A. Well, I suppose it was about eight days, so far as I
reckon it.

Q. Do you remember the day of the month on which he died ? If
you (%10 not, say so. A. No, I cannot exactly recollect the day of the
montn.

Q. How long was it before you sighted Cape Clear? A. About
two days.

Q. When you say eight days, do you mean eight days before he
died, or eight days before you arrived at Liverpool?! A. Before we

got to Liverpool.
Q. Then you mean he was hanged in that way eight days before
you got to Liverpool? A. Yes.

Q. About how many days after his death was it before you reached
Iiverpool? A. After his death?

Q. Yes. A. Between five and six days.

Q. 1 did not ask you betore. I do not know whether my learned
friend will ask the question; but when he fell on the deck, after
being let down, did you see what became of him afterwards? A
Yes; I saw him rise after he had been lying there four or five
minutes.

Q. Did you see what became of him? A. He walked aft along
with the prisoners. |

Q. In the interval between that and his death, did you see him
from time to time? A. Yes.

Q. Whilst he lay on the deck, was Captain Rogers there?
A. Yes, and the two other prisoners.

Q. You say, when he was let down he did not make any othker
observation? A. Nothing at all.

Q. But afterwards, while he remained on the deck, was anything
said by him then? A. I did not hear anything.
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Q. Did the master go away and leave him in that state? A. No,
he stopped until he rose up.

Q. And then nothing was said. A. He walked aft, and the man
sald, “ You had better finish me at once.”

Q. Did the Captain make any reply, or either of the mates?
A. No, I never heard them say anything—I went aft to my work.
Q. You went aft? A. Yes, I went aft.

Q. I think you said, afterwards, from time to time, he was in the

forecastle?! A. Yes,—three days before he died we took him into
the forecastle.

Q. Was that after he was hanged? A. Yes.
Q. You took him into the forecastle? A. Yes.

Q. How long after he was hanged was he taken into the fore-
castle? A. Between four and five days after he was hanged we
had him three days in the forecastle. |

Q. You say the hanging took place about eight days before you
arrived at Liverpool? A. Yes.

Q. And you arrived at Liverpool some five or six days after his
death ? Now, how long before his death was it that he was hanged ?
A. Before his death,—I cannot tell exactly.

Q. He was three days in the forecastle? A, Yes.

Q. When he had been three days in the forecastle, what happened
to him? A. Well, he was sent for by the steward to get a dose of
medicine, and he went aft and got it.

Q. Where did he die? A. He died on the forecastle.

Q. On the deck? A. Yes, on the deck.

Q. Did you see him lying there? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see his body after his death? A. Yes. |

Q. In what condition did it appear-to you to be? A. It was full
of sores and corruption.

Q. I want the jury to hear your own words,—full of sores and
corruption, I think you said? A. Yes.

Q. What else did you observe about his body? A. A mark on
his head. .

Q. What sort of a mark on his head,—what was the colour?
A. It was all red, like the mark of a whip. _

Q. Were there any sores on his body when he came on board ?
A. No, I did not see any:. |

Q. Could you attribute those sores to anything.—could you tell
what had caused them ?

Mr. Moxnk—I object to that question.

A. 1t was by 1ll-usage. | _ |

Mr. Moxk—I apprchend this witness 1s not a scientific person,—
he is not here to judge of the effect.

Mr. BArRoN Warson—No, unless he prove cause and effeet one
way or the other. ~
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Mr. E. James—I will put the ‘question in a different form.
Q. 1 thmk you sa}’ you saw the dog bite him several times?

A s Messmod
(2} D1d you observe the condition  of those bites afterwards ?

A. Yes. Siad .

Q. Well, did they hea.l e B No, they never healed at all.
Q. Can YOII tell whether the wounds caused by those bites were
upon his body after his death ? - ‘A. Some of them.
| Q In what state were those sores or wounds? A, Well, ‘the
sores where the dog had bitten him were full of maggots.

Q. For some days before his death did you observe what etate he
was in? A. Nothing but a mass of sores all over.

Q. Did you observe his general health when he was taken down

to the forecastle? = A. Yes.
Q. Did he appear to you to be as well then as he had been some

time before, or did he appear to be worse ? A He appeared to be

WOrses
Mr. BARON WATSON——FOI' the last threée days he was there? Al Yes.

Nt B JAMES——Was he ‘a qmet man; or. a. no1sy man, or What?
A Arvery quiet man. |

Q. So far as EOH observed as you said before e obcyed orderﬁ
and did any work he was set todo? Ai Yesi' o 0 00 O

Cross-ezamined by Mr. Monk.

.»I'think you say you shipped as an able seaman ? 1AL Yes;

. And so chd he? A. Yes.
.. How long had you been at sek? 1 A How long?

Q

Q

Q

Q. Yes. A. For the last ten yéars.

8,. What age are you? ' A. Twenty-two.'
Q.

. You went to sea when you were twelve years old? A. Yes.
He was a quiet man, you say, and he: did all that he was t:old ?

A. Everything he was told; as far as I could see. |

Q. And did it properly and well? .- A..Yes.

Q. How many watches had you? ' A. Two watches. = -

Q. Whose watches were they? A. The Captain’s and chlef
mate’s,—the second mate used to have the Captain’s watch.

Q.How many hands were on board? A. There were six able
scamen, one ordinary seaman, a boy, a cook a steward, and the three

prisoners.
- Q. That1s tén ?° “A. Yes, and the th.l ee prlsoners

Q: Can you tell me in what way.they were divided i1nto watcheg—
who were in the Captain’s and who in the chief mate’s? A, There
were three able seamen and a boy in the second mate’s watch,

Q. The Captain’s watch? A. In the Captain’s watch.

Q. Now give me the names of the able seamen. A, There was
Francis Doyle. I do not know the names exactly,

&
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Q. Can you tell who were in the other watch? A. Yes, there
were three able seamen. |

Q. What were their names? A, There was one Thomas Hayes,
William Groves, and William Power.

Q. Who was also in the watch? A. The chief mate.

Q. And nobody else? A. No.

Q. Then there was one more in the Captain’s watch than the chief
mate’s watch?  A. Well, I never took notice of that.

Q. Do you mean to say you do not know? A. Yes, I know if I
looked over it a bit. ('Ehe witness paused for a short time). Yes,

there was one more in the Captain’s watch.
Q. Now,are you able to tell me the names of the able seamen who

were in the Captain’s watch, or the names they went by on shipboard?
A. There was Francis Doyle, and one they called * Dublin.” I do
not know his name—they called him Dublin on board.

Q. There was Francis Doyle and one they called “ Dublin,” who
else ? (The witness hesitated). That will do for our purpose. Should
you know Dublin’s name if I told you—think you? A. Yes.

Q. Was it “Cahill” ? A. Yes, Cahill.

Q. Who else was there—either by the ship’s name or the real
name ! A. I don’t know the other one’s name.

Q. Now, on the 29th April, I think you say, you signed articles ?
A Yes.

Q. And then you went on shore? A. Yes.

Q. And did not return until the 11th of May? A. Yes, I was on
board to work on different days.

Q. You were on board to work at different times between the 29th
of April and the 11th of May? A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell which days you went to work? A. No, I cannot
think of those days,

- Q. You cannot tell those days at all? A. No.

Q. Not one of them ? A. 1 did not take notice of the days.

Q. If you cannot tell, say so, and there is an end of it—neither the
day of the month nor the day of the week? A. No, Idid not take
notice of that.

(). Do you know whether the ship’s boat was missing during any
part of that time? A. No, I do not. 1 heard that the man who died
lowered the boat on the Saturday before we left Barbadoes.

Q. I want to know whether you know, before the ship sailed, the
boat, as far as you know at the time, was missing? A, No.

Q. You never heard that? A. No, only what 1 heard—that the
man lowered the boat and went on shore. |

Q. You did not hear 1t ? A. I heard it from the other men, I was
not on board.

Q. Did you yourself make any search for the boat on shore ?.2'A.
Make any search ?
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Q. Yes. A. 1 did not.
Mgz. E. James :—We have persons on the watch who will prove

all that.

Q. Oh, indeed ! Very well.

Q. On the 11th of May what time of the day did you come on
board? A. Eleven o’clock.

Q. Was Rose there too at that time? A. Yes.

Q. Was he in any of the watches? A. He was 1 both watches ;

he was kept up whenever they called on him.

Q. When the watches were arranged was he placed in either of
them? A. No.

Q. How was that? A. I do not know the reason at all.

Q. Is it not usual for able seamen to be placed in one or other of
the watches? A. Yes. _

Q. And ordinary seamen also? A. Yes. |

Q. But he was not? A. No, I did not see him placed. _

Q. I do not know what name you sailors use for arranging the
watches, whatever 1t was, when were the watches arranged or divided,
or whatever it may be? A, As soon as the deck is cleared up. Soon
after we left Barbadoes. |

Q. You cannot tell me at all why it was that Rose was not placed
in either of the watches? A. No, I do not know. |

Q. Power, I think you say, was in the same watch as yourself?
AisYess

Q. That I may not make a mistake, see if I know rightly who was
in the second mate’s watch? A. No, it was the chiet mate’s.

Q. I forgot that the Captain’s and second mate’s watch are the
same? A. Yes. |

Q. Had you been in the forecastle before the watcheswere arranged?
A Yes, I was in the forecastle in the morning.

Q. At that time had you seen any dirt Rose had made there? A. No.

(Q. Nor smelt 1t ? . No. |

(. Nor heard any complaint? A. Yes. I did not sée him do it
in the forecastle, but I heard he had done it. =~

Q. You mean to say you did not perceive it by smell, or any other
sign of it? A. No, not at that time.

Q. That you swear?! A. Yes. |

Q. Do you know what became of Power’s shirt that day? A. No,

I cannot say I do. . .
Q. You do not know that at all ? A. No, I did not sce anything

about 1t.
Q. Perhaps you do not know what I am alluding to? A, No, I

do not remember any. shirt of Power’s.
(i You do noet remember. Power’s shirt bemg thrown overbosrd ?

A. No.

Q. Power is here? A. Ycs, he 1s here.
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Q. Do you remember Power’s shirt being used on any occasion by
the ‘deceased man to wipe up dirt he had made in the forecastle !
A. No, I do not know.

Q. I dare say you never heard it until this morning ?

‘Mr. Bruiss:—That is not the proper way to put the questlon, I
object to it.

Mr. MoNkK—I have a nght, to a.sk the questlon to ascertam the
credibility of the witness.. -

Q. I ask you again, do you mean to swear you never heard of
Power’s shirt until this morning 2~ A. Of what?

Q. Of Power’s shirt being used by the deceased to Wlpe up dirt
w1th ? A. I never heard it before you spoke of it.

Q. You told my learned friend that the man’s trowsers were

thmwn overboard ; who threw them ovelboard? A. Groves threw
one pair overboard | '

Q. How many pairs of trowkers and’drawers had he  at dxff'erent

periods during the time you were on board yourself between' the
11th of May and the day of his death? .A. Three paars and one

pair of drawers that the Captain’ gave him..

Q. Was he in the habit usually of dlrtylng hls tlowsers? A
‘Well, sir, he could not keep himself. '

Q. How frequently do you’ think he was obhfred to be made to

wash “himself from the condition he’ was mn? "A. 1 I canfiot. _say
(,xa(,tly how many different times. I saw him washing himself; and

at the tinmie he was getting washed he was getting' lashed.

Q. Now, on the night of the 11th of May did he sleep n the
forecastle A. Yes, I beheve he did.

Q. Do you know whether he did or did not ? A.. I believe he

did, but I was asleep myself. I could not see him all might. I
believe he was pulled out in the night.

Q. Then, as I understand you, he was down in the foreca.stle when
8 went to sleep? A. Yes, he went down. .

Q. And he was not in the forecastle when you awoke A. No.

Q. Was there a bad smell or any dirt in the forecastle when you
awoke ?  A. No, I did not smell anything.

Q. You never saw him even. dnty the deck at all,. except when
he was in 1rons ? A, Oh, yes.

Q. I thought you said you never had@ i:Av Frequently, not to
say often.

Q. Did you see him take it up with his hands and throw it into
the hold? A. No.
Q. Was there rice and sugar in the hold? A, I believe there was.

Q Did part of the cargo consist of rum? A, Yes.

Q. Did you see him drink rum? A. No, only what the Captain
gave him.
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Q. Then the C.iptain did give him grog ? A. Yes, sometimes, to
try and make him drunk. . o . |

Q. How often? A. I have seen him four or five times. -

Q. Who was by on those occasions? A. I don’t know. |

- Q. What makes you say the Captain gave him rum to try and
make him drunk? A. When he gave him a drop, he gave him half
a tumbler full. , 3 '

Q. That is your reason for saying he tried to make him drunk ?
A. Yes, because the man was not sensible ; sometimes he was not
exactly right. 1
- Q. Do I understand you rightly that when he was not in irons or
fhey were not beating him, he did his work like other able seamen ?
A. He did all they put-him to do. _

Q. Isitthe duty of able seamen totaketheir turnsat steering? A. Yes.

Q. ‘Did you ever see him steering ? . A. Well, I have seen him
there for a little while till he was put away. |

Q. Now, sir, do you mean to swear upon your oath that that man
was able to steer 7 . A. Well, I cannot say. | .

Q. Do you mean to say that he was acquainted with the duties of
an able seaman and able to discharge them ? . Mind how you answer
the question. A. As far as 1 could see.

Q. Did you ever see him make any dirt when he was sent up
aloft? A. No, I did not see anything of it ; it was my watch below
at the time. \ T | o |

Q. Now, about the dog ; how many times did you see the dog set
upon him by anybody ? A. Three or four times by the Captain.

Q. By nobody else? A, No. g

Q. Tell me when that was? A. Six or seven days after we left

Barbadoes. ' | |

Q. That was the first time? A. That was the first time I saw it.

- Q. I suppose up to that time you saw nothing the matter with the
man? A. Oh, yes; he was full of sores, and every day regularly he
got fresh sores. . A - | | T ek

By A Juror. Before the six or seven days after you left Barba-
does had he sores? A. Yes, he had some from the time we left;
they began to get worse at that time, and they increased on him

every day. K S dinstletad ik ol

Q. Do we understand you that he had sores at the time you started
from Barbadoes?.: A. 1 did not see any. st “5r

Mz. Monk. Then why did you say just now that he had some
sores? A. Yes, after we lett. | | ,

Mr. Baron WarsoNn—He said more than that—he said he was
full of sores. | :

Mr. MoNk—I understand from what you say, that this man was
on friendly terms with all the crew, except the Captain ands the
two mates. A. Yes, I saw no harm i the man. '

&
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Q. No quarrelling? A. No, I never saw him quarrelling.

Q. No fighting? A. There was one of the chaps was going to hit
him one day, and the cook jumped between them.

Q. Which of the chaps was that? A. Why, Groves.

Q. Do you mean to tell me, with that exception that Groves was
going to hit him and the cook got between them—that there was no
quarrelling nor fighting between any of the crew and Rose? A. No,
not that I saw.

Q, Had Groves anything in his hand when he was going to hit
him? A. I did not see it. |

Q. How do you know he was going to hit him? A. Well, I was
aft at the time {e jumped at him. S

Q. You could see, I suppose? A. I heard a bit of a noise, I was
aft at the time. |

Q. You did not see what took place? A. I left the wheel, and
came to look, having seen the cook jump between them,

Q. At that time did you observe any blood on Rose’s face? A. No.

Q. Perhaps you will swear there was not? A. I was steering the
ship.

Q. You say you left the wheel for the purpose of seeing what was
going on. A. I stepped on one side. '

Q. Will you venture to swear there was no blood on his face?
A. No, because 1 did not see it. |

Q. Did you ever see Power strike him? A. No.
Q. Power was in your watch? A. Yes.

Q. Then you and Power would be aft together and down together ?

you would be on deck in the same watch, and you would be below
at the same time ? A. Yes. ' $

. Q. Do you mean to swear you never saw DPower strike him?
A. No, I never saw him strike him.

Q. T understand you to say you never saw Groves strike him ex-
cept this once? A. No. |

Q. And except upon that occasion you never saw any quarrelling
or any fighting between him and any other of the crew? A. No, I
did not see anything else. b g 1. B9 N0

Q. When was it you saw Groves springing forwards to hit Rose,
and the cook getting between them? A. We might have been out
about a fortnight at that time. '

Q. Were you present when the boat 1 was asking you about just
now was brought back from the shore after it had drifted? A. No
1 was not.

Q. Did you hear any complaint made by any of the men to the
Captain or either of the mates of the conduct of Rose? A. No, I
never heard anything about it.

Q. You have told us he went down to sleep in the forecastle the
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first night, and when you awoke the next morning he was not there ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where was he the second night—did he sleep in the forecastle ?
A. No, I believe he did not.

Q. Why did he not?  A. 1 believe it was the Captain’s orders.

Q. Had the men made any objection?  A. T never heard any.

Q. Now the third night, where did he sleep? A. On deck.

Q. Did he ever sleep in the forecastle at all after part of the first
night until within two or three days of his death? A. Only when
he has run below to clear away so that nobody could see him.

Q. Did he sometimes run into the hold as well as the forecastle ?
A. I believe he went into the hold two or three times.

Q. Do you know the phrase used on board—of * skulking?” A.
Yes, I know what it 1s, but I am not in the habit of doing it myself.

Q. Did Rose go into the hold to skulk? A. I do not know what
he went there for. - '*

Q. Could he have to go there for any business? A. I do not
if the officers sent him there.

Q. Do you mean to say you do not know when he went into the
hold, that it was for the purpose of skulking or not? A. No, I do not.

Q. You have told us a different story once or twice about the
length of time after he had the rope about his neck before he died.
How long was it after that before he died ? A. I suppose about
eight days, I cannot exactly say.

Q. When he grew worse towards the latter part, did he get
medicine from the Captamn? A. 1 believe he did.

Q. Had he o1l given to him? A. Yes, and something red, like
brandy.

Q. FIr-Iad he senna leaves given to him to make medicine of ? A. Not

that I know of. _
Q. After he first went into the forecastle, during the two or three
days before his death, was he turned out by anybody? A. No, he

was brought on deck to wash himself one morning.
Q. What was his state of health at that time? A. Full of sores
and matter all about him.
Q. Had he dirtied himself at that time.? A. Not that I know of.
Q. Did he use to have rice cooked for him by the cook? A. Yes,

once or twice. |

Q. Only once or twice? A. That is all I saw.,
Q. Do you remember Groves on one occasion giving him a piece

of canvas to clean up the deck where he had dirtied it—you under-
stand what I mean? A. I did not see that.

Q. Do you know on one occasion he took a clean shirt from one
of the crew instead of the canvas?! A. No; I did not see that.

Q. Did you see him throw a clean shirt overboard after he had
used it for that purpose? A. No.
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Q. Did you see Groves strike him? " Once with the flat of his’
hand—that was when he was in the forecastle after he had taken thex
medicine, when we were obliged to lash his arms.

Q. Why did you lash his arms? A. Because he was rampmg mad
the night after he had taken the medicine.”

Q. Were you afraid of him at all any of you? A. We were
afraid of him, and we tied him up, thinking it would be safer ;.. we
did not know what he might do during the time we were asleep

Q. Did you hear anybody say he had got matches, and there was
danger of the ship being set on fire? = A. There was a talk that he

had matches, but I do not know whether he had a wish to set the
ship on fire.

Q. Did you see him with mat(,hes ? A No.
Q. Did Power have a quarrel Wlth him in any way ! A. "\Tot th'lt.
Issaw.wous ;

Q. Since you have been at sea, did you ever see any other man
gagoed besides this man? = A. No ; this 1s the first man.

Q. Were you ever on board a man-of-war? A. No.

Q. When Groves and Martin interfered, and you say Martin got

between Groves and Rose, did you see Groves strike Martm'? A.
No, I did not: I was at the wheel.

Q. If you saw parts, why did you not see the rest? A.1 could not
leave the wheel long, or the ship would have been out of her way:.

Q. Did you hear Groves use some ill language to Martin for inter-
fermg? A. No.

Q. Do you remember after the hangmg affair we have been talk-
mg of, Rose assisting to alter the position of the cargo? A. No.:

Q. Do you remember after that the bags of rice in the hold were
changéd from one part to another.  A. Yes. |

Q. How many were there—about 1507 A. I cannot say ; 1 was
not working in the hold. 310}

Q. Cannot you form some 1dea--were there 100 2 A. I.‘here mlght
be about 100. TR

Q. How many men removed them ¢ A. Two men
Q. Was heone? A. Yes.

(. What was the name of the other? A. Dawdson a0
- Q. Did Rose carry one bag of rice and Davidson the other bab
alternately ? A. He used to drag them along the deck. it o

Q. Do you know the size of a bag of rice? A. 1 beheve thE} were
156 1bs. bags:.

Q. You have mentloned a man named Doyle as one. of the able
seamen! A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever hear h1m complain to Seymour about Rose, the
deceased. A No.
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C*ross-exammed by Mr. Aspinall.

Q. Do you mean to say he never was turned out of the forecastle
‘th(.. la.st two or three dRYﬂ before he dlﬁd ? A_ He was put out OHCC

or twice.

Q. Did you see him during the last three days lying on the deck
at any time ! A. No. |
Q. You. never saw him ]ymg on'the ‘deck. with the sea washmg
over him? A. Not during the last three days.

Q. Was he lying on the deck with the sea washing over him the
morning he died?  A. Yes. Ty P

Q. How had he got there? A. Well, I do not know.

-Q. You don’t know how he got out of the forecastle to the deck
that morning? A. Ob, yes, me and Groves helped him out of the
forecastle to get washed, but how he got forward I do not know.

Q. How 1011g before his death did you and Groves take him out of

the forecastle? A. The same morning.
Q. How long before his death ? A, Two hours.

Q Where dld you leave hlm ? A We left h1m 011 the mam h‘ltch
Q. Did Rose want to be taken - out? A. Yes.
Q. What time was 1t? = A. It was from abeut half-past seven, to

eight o’clock.

Q. Where did you see him after you left him on the main-hatch ? ?
A. I saw him lying on the forecastle. - |

Q. Whereabouts? A. On the port side.

Q. What sort of weather wasit? A. Not to say bad weather—

there was a nice breeze.
Q. Was the sea washing over the decks? -A. Not a great deal—

on the lee where the shlp was lying down
Q. Was he on the side where the water was coming over? A

Xes. *
Q. Did :every . sea, . that. c::l.medr over the Shlp, _wash over. hlm?

A. Not every sea. . . .
Q. Did the sea constantly Wa.sh over hun? " A, "Not all ¢ over hlm,

but sometimes a spray came in. from windward and washed on him.

Q. The waves themselves washed over his feet? | A. It was rather
a heavy sea, but not so much wind, and the spray came over his feet.

Q. The sea 1tself came to his. fGEt? A. Tt came th.rough the hawse-
holes.

Q. The sea itsclf and the spray all went over him? A. It could
not go underneath, it went over his thighs.

Q. Which way was he Iying? A.-On his face.

Q. Which direction was he lying, along or athwart sh1ps'? A
Athwart ships with his feet on the rail, and his head on the bits.

Q. Was he not lying along the thp with his head forwa.rds"
A. No. Tt | ks
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Q. How long did you see him in that position? A. From the
time the watch was called until I went below, and was called up and

told he was dead.
Q. What were you doing ?  A. I was on deck taking sails out of

the after-house.
Q. Did you go up to him at all? A. We went to try to rouse him.
Q. Did you move him at all? A. No.
Q. If he had been moved to the other side of the deck, the water
would not have come over him? A. I don’t suppose it would.

Q. Do you remember at the commencement of the voyage any-
thing about a bucket of sugar? A. 1 know there was a bucket of

sugar. | |
Q. Do you remember his easing himself in the bucket of sugar !

A. No, I was told of it when I came on board.
Q. Do you know when he first signed articles ? = A. Yes, the same

day as 1 did.
Q. Do you know how many times he deserted before he left

Barbadres? A. No.

Re-examined by the Attorney General.

Q. The day you helped him on deck from the forecastle to wash
himself, was that after the hanging ¥ A. Oh, yes, afterwards.

Q. When he was tied by his hands, because he was mad and Groves
struck him with the flat of his hand, was that after the hanging?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you surc the rice was removed after the hanging or before ?

A. I think it was before. :
Q. You say he had rice once or twice to eat? A. Yes.

Q. Was he allowed to mess with you? A. No.

Q. Do you know what he commonly had to eat? A. Yes.

Q. What was it? A. Dry bread and water.

Q. How often had you meat? A. Every day, such as it was.

Q. Had Rose meat? A. No, 1 never saw any meat weighed out
to him, only what we gave him ourselves.

Q. Had you tea and sugar? A. Yes.
Q. Had Rose tea and sugar? A, Only the tea that me and the

cook used to give him on the sly.
Q. Did you ever hear the Captain give orders as to what he was

to have to eat! A. No. sl .
- Q. How often did you see the Captain give him medicine ? A.

Twice.

Q. Was that before the hanging or after ! A. After.

Q. You say on the third night after you sailed he slept upon deck,
do you know whether he was in irons that night or not? A. No, I

cannof say. oy _
Q. Was he ever kept in irons by night? A, Oh, yes, very often.
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Q. Was he ironed on deck then? A. Yes.
Q. Now, attend to me, when did you first see any sores upon him?

A. Well, four or five days after, I saw sores come on him.
Q. After what? A. After we left Barbadoes.

- Q. Can you tell whether the sores were in the places where he
had been bitten? A. Yes, it was by the biting.

Q. You say he was pulled out of the forecastle one night, do you
know whether that was done by any body’s orders? A. Yes, by
the Captain’s orders. .

. Had you a seaman named Davidson on board? A. Yes.

In whose watch? A. In the second mate’s.

That would be the Captain’s watch? A. Yes.

Do you know the prisoner Rogers’s handwriting ! A. No.

Do you know the mate’s handwriting? A. No.

. Is your name to those articles? A. Yes, that is my name.

. Did you see Rose sign those articles? A. Yes, I was in the
office at the same time.

Mr. Moxx.—But did you see him sign them? A. I did not see
him, but I was in the office at the same time.

Mr. AspiNALL.—] see you signed the articles with a maik? A,
Yes. |

Mr. Monk.—You say Rose was pulled out of the forecastle one
night by the Captain’s orders? A, Yes.

Q. Did you hear him give the orders? A. No, but I heard on
deck that he gave the orders.

o] -ToY-Y=FoF~

William Groves sworn, examined by Mr. Digby Seymour.
Q. Did you ship on board the ¢ Martha and Jane” at Barbadoes,

as an able seaman in May last? A. Yes.
Q. Do you recollect the deceased, joining the ship? A. No, he
was on board when I went on board. -

Q. How long before the ship sailed did you join? A. I signed
articles on the 9th, and joined on the 11th, and the ship sailed the
same day. | |

Q. 0131’ that day did you see either of the prisoners do anything ?
A. Yes; I had not been on board a quarter of an hour before the
man Rose came to me and asked if 1 had any liquor ? -

Q. You say you saw something done by one of the prisoners?

A. Yes.

Q. Which of them? A. Seymour. :

Q, What did he say or do? A. I saw him come down the fore-
castle and strike Rose with his fist, and kick him.

Q. Could you, from anything you heard at the time, form an
opinion as to what was the cause of the beating? A. The prisoner
said he would not mind a man being in the forecastle, but he could
not allow a “ thing” to be there, and he drove him on deck.
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Q. You used the expression “Dréve him on deck.” Had he
anything in his hand? A. No; nothing. , $

Q. What time of the day was that? A. About half-past ten.

Q. Did you ever -afterwards see anything ‘done to Rose by tho
prisoners? A, Yes; I saw Sey mour and Mlles beat him round the
deck several times with a rope’s-end. ' The captain was on shore!
We were ready to go to sea, and were heavmg anchor When the
captain came on board.

Q. When you.saw Miles and Seymour beat "him were they
together, or was ‘it at' different times? A. No; at different tnnes
I never saw them both hit him at one time.. ,

Q. Could you, on any occasion when you saw them beat hlm at
different times, see any cause for it ? - A. I could see no cause for’it.
The man was an able seaman, so far as I could see of him, '

Q. How long have 7on been accustomed to’ the sea? A. Slnce
1837.

Q. How was Rose with regard to ability to discharge the duthS-
of an able seaman? ' A. He would have discharged his duty if the
Captain and the rest of the prisoners had let him gone en the same as
another man.

Mz. Baron WarsoN. He was perfectly able, I suppose? A.
Yes; in my opinion he was perfectly able.

-~ MR. SEymour. Did you see him take the helm7 A Yes:sd 1daia
10Q." ' Where were you at the time? A. I was at the wheel at: the
tlme 13

Q. Was he able to steer the ship? A. He came one day aft to
the wheel and asked me to let hlm steer ; he took the helm, and I
watched him for a quarter of an hour to see whether he could steer,

when the captain came aft and drove him away, and the dog followed.

after him..
Q. You say you were watching to see if he could steer? A

Yes; I can steer a ship myself, and 1 can tell whether a man can
steer by standing by the side of him. -
Q. With 1egard to his health, in what condltmn did Rose appear,
from outward appearances, when He came on board? A When I
first came on board, the man appeared to be in good health.. ~

Q. Was he a stout, thin, or spare man? = A. As stout a built man
as you would 'see in a day s'walk=~a man of -about thirty-two years
of age, as far as I could judge.

Q. You say the ship sailed on the 11th? Av Yes.. .

Q. Do you recollect, on the next da.y anything bemg done to him
by either of the prisoners? = A. Yes; I saw him rope’s-ended about
the deck by the two prisoners, and whlpped by the Captain. -

Mr. BaroNn Warson. Rope’s-ended by whom ? A By the two
prisoners, and whlpped by the Captam with this whlp (pomtmg
to 1t). | IVE § £ | |



“Mg. Seymovr. Is that like the rope you saw them use? (handing
n) A. Noj that was the rope they hung him with. At other

times they used a piece of rope like that( pointing). When they
wanted to strike him, they were not partwular which rope thcy got

ht)ld Of
Q. At the time he was beaten by the captain with the riding whi
how was he dressed—what had he on? "A. He had an old ﬂanneli'
shirt on and a pair of fustian trowsers when he came ‘on board,

Q. Where did the whip fall? A. He was 1o way partmular,
anywhere he could strike hlm——anywhere about the body. |

Q. Did he make any complaint, or say anything? A. He said
““ Oh, God! what shall I do?  What have I done?”

Q. Did you on any other day see 51mllar acts done to Rose  cunie -
I saw him one day in irons. -

Q. In'regard to whipping and beatmg, how ‘long ‘was it con-
tinued? A. It continued several days—there was hardly a day on
the passage before the man’s ‘death but what he got whipped by‘*t’he
Captain and rope’s-ended by the two prisoners, Wlth the' exc‘eptmn of
the three days I took him into'the forecastle.”

Qi 'That was three days before he died ? “A. Yes.”

Q: We are told there was a 'dog on board ? ' A, Yes - ST

Q. Did you ever see the Cap >tatn beat Rose while the dog 'has
bitten him ! A, Yes; I have seen: the dog fly at’ Rose, and fake
pieces out of his feet and hands. The dog wotld “bite him in ‘this

way (descnbm g); he could not take the pieces out clean but pieces
would be left in this way.

Q. On what' part of the body have g i such bites glven?
A. The legs, arms, feet, and hands.- "~

Q. Did you ever heat the captain speak to the docr ? . I have
hedrd him speak to the dog to fly at him, and call him off.

Q. W'hat did- he say? A. He said, “ Come here, Watch,” in
that way. -

Q. Did he speak to¢his dog before he bit the man? A. Not at
that time.

Q. Did he set the dog at Rose? A. Oh, yes, oﬁcn
Q. Did Rose make any complaints when the dog was set at him?
A. The only complaints he would make, were, ¢ Oh, my God! what

have I done? what are you domg it for ? what shall 1 do ¢ 29 e
man was as harimless as a child.

Q When Rose said that did you hear the Captam say anything 2
A. 1 did not hear him say anythmg at the time. 1oy )

Q. Have you ever seen Rose in irons? A. T have. r .1

- Q. When did you first see him in irons? A. On the 15th day of

May. | |
Q. How was ne fastened! A. Sometimes by his hands and

sometimes by his fect to a ringbolt.
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Q. On the 13th of May, how was he fastened? A. At that time
in the morning he had his hands fastened, and at night they released
his hands and fastened his feet.

Q. While he was in irons on the 15th of May, did you see him
dirty the deck? A. I did. '

Q. Did you afterwards see the Captain come up to Rose? A. Yes,
the Captain and the two mates. :

Q. Just state what then took place. A. This is a thing they call
“ A Fid,” (pointing). I saw the Captain take it up from the deck
and put it to Rose’s mouth. He would not open his mouth, and then
he stopped his nostrils,and when he did open his mouth, the Captain
forced 1t in saying, with a smack—* How do you like that, my man ?
I will give you a bit more bye-and-bye.”

Q. How were his arms at that time? A. On his arms there were
the marks of a few blows where the Captain had struck him with the
whip, and where the dog had bit him. A |

Q. At the time they put this fid into his mouth, were his arms
free? A. No, they were fast.

Q. Who was by ? A. The Captain and two mates; the Captain
called a man by the name of Doyle, and one by thé name of Cahill,
to come and hold his legs while he put the filth in his mouth, I stood
forward by the galley. |

Q. Did they obey his orders? A. They did. =~ =~

Q. Do you remember any other occasion when the Captain re-
peated the act? A. Yes, they shifted him to the starboard side of
the deck, to another ring bolt. ' |

Q. On that same day or another day? A. Another day.

Q. How long afterwards? A. The next day. .
Q. What else? A. Give me that chain—(a chain on the table was

handed to the witness). I'his is one of the picces of the chain that they
rove through the ring-bolt—this is one halt of it. They had two
connecting shackles fastening another piece on to it, they took a round-
turn round each leg, so they could play at see-saw in the ring-bolt
when they liked.

Q. When he was in that state, what took place? I believe you
were going to tell us something ? ~ A. He eased himself on the deck,
and the Captain came up with a piece of wood, about the breadth of
my two fingers, he took some of the filth up, and as before, he put it
into the man’s mouth and nostrils, then he asked the mate to heave
a bucket of water over him.

Q. You saw what was on deck the Captain touched with a stick ?
A. Yes, I saw the filth on deck. |

Q. From what you saw could you judge whether the man did it
wilfully or because he could not help 1it?! A. The man could net
help it, he was fast and they would not release him to go to the head.

Q. Did he appear to be purged,? . ;A.; No.
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Q. Who was by on this occasion, was there anybody else besides
the Captain? A. The two mates were there.

Q. Do you recollect anything about a water-cask on a Sunday ?
A. Yes.
Q. Tell us about that. A. The man was sitting on the main hatch

in irons, his legs were in irons or chains, and he was singing—¢ Oh,
let us be joyful,”” and then he prayed, and the Captain came and told
him to stop that noise, and the man did so. The Captain said to the
prisonér Seymour, ‘“There,—get an iron bolt and some spun-yarn to
gag the man.” The prisoner Seymour brought a bolt that was too
short, there were not ends enough to fasten it behind his head ; he
went away to get a longer bit, then they got a shackle bolt belonging
to the main-sheet and they fastened his hands behind. him, his feet
were in irons, he was gagged and his hands were behind him, sitting
down.

Q. Who put the bolt in his mouth? A. Mr. Seymour brought it,
and the Captain put it in; and both mates assisted in fastening it
behind the man’s head. - -

Q. Do you remember something being done about a water-cask ?
A. Yes, Rose was let out out of the irons ; they had kept him in that
position with the iron bolt in his mouth for about an hour, when he .
was let out, he was lying on the deck all night and crept into the
long boat. “The next morning the Captain ordered the second mate
to unlash one of the empty water-casks to put Rose into it. It was
unlashed and the Captain and two mates were round it busy in taking
the head out, when the head was taken out the Captain said ¢ Come,

Rose, get in here.” The Captain and mates helpecd him over the
chines of the cask and put him into it. The cask was then headed
up the same as a cooper would do it ; they then laid the cask down
on its bilge and ran it two or three times from the long boat to the
ship’s side with Rose in it; they then placed the water-cask on its
head and lashed it to secure it, the same as 1f 1t was full of water.
- Q. What o’clock of the day was 1t ? A. It was about twelve o’clock
of the day when they put him 1n. |

Q. How long was hein? A. He was kept there between eleven
and twelve hours. The chief mate said he would not mind keeping

him there twenty-four hours. _

Q. When did the chief mate make that remark? A. He made
that remark to him when I told him the man Rose wanted some water.

Q. You told him he wanted some water ! A. Yes.

(2. In consequence of that did you go to the water? A. Yes.

(1. Did you see Rose after he got out of the cask? A. I saw him
after 12 o’clock. I came on deck at 12. 1 was below when he was
let out, he was let out between 11 and 12. | |

Q. What condition was he in when you saw him out of the cask ?
A. He had nothing on but an old flannel shirt, he was full of sweat
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anc}i perspiration; the shirt was full of sweat from being in the hot
cask. EL
"+ Q. Do you recollect on-any occasion his being sent aloft ? A. Yes,
1 saw him aloft one day stark-naked. _ o€ ‘
Q. How long was that after ? ~A. Before he was put into the water
cask and afterwards, he was often sent aloft naked. | |
Q. Did you ever see him carrying anything at the time he was
sent aloft ? = A. 1 saw him carrying a bucket of water oné day up to
the main rigging. L e W
Q. Was he naked then? * A. He had an old flannel shirt on, and
che chief mate was whipping him up with the whip." '

Q. Where did he strike him? A. Anywhere he could get a blow
at him—over his feet and legs.

Q. Did you see the blood come? A. Not at the time he was ‘up
in the rigging, but I have seen him struck with the whip sometimes.
Q. Do you recollect one day being at the wheel when ‘something
was said- by the Captain to: Rose? A, One day‘l was steering the
ship when Rose came aft and said something to the Captain; but I eould
not.rightly get hold of what he did say, and the Captain’'said to Rose,
££:Whydo' yeu not jump: bverboard, or else hang yourself ’*'and Rose
- sald s Lwish youwould do'it for me.”> 0 7iod momt ol aiiv moniian
51 QuiWhat did the Captain say ¢ A He said'v “Come ‘along here:”
The: Captain took him forward to the starboard main-lifts. 1 did not
see what he did to him, because the house on the deck was in the way.
- Q. Did you see the Captain again ! A. Yes, he came aft while' T
was steering the ship, and said: *“ If I had kept him there two seconds
longer he would have been a dead man, for he was black in the face,
when I let him down.” 34 0 q DI 3 Gl 1 '

Q. How long was this before Rose died? © A. I suppose it was five
or six days before he died. i o - _ |

Q. Did you observe any change in his condition of health after that
day? A. After the hanging by the rope and being in the water-cask.
I found the man began to be a bit foolish, to look not altogether right
as he used to be before that. M1 il 30 yoRi o
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